Public Document Pack

City Council

Nottingham City Council
Planning Committee

Date: Wednesday, 23 October 2024
Time: 2.00 pm

Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham,
NG2 3NG

Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following
business

Director for Legal and Governance
Governance Officer: Catherine Ziane-Pryor Direct Dial: 0115 876 4298
1 Membership

to note that Councillor Naim Salim has been removed as a member of
the Committee, leaving a vacant seat.

2 Apologies for Absence
3 Declarations of Interests
4 Minutes To Follow

Minutes of the meeting held on 18 September 2024, for confirmation.

5 Planning Applications: Reports of the Director of Planning and
Regeneration

a 23A Private Road Nottingham City NG5 4DD 3-18

b 23A Private Road Nottingham City NG5 4DD 19-32

If you need any advice on declaring an Interest in any item on the agenda, please contact
the Governance Officer shown above, if possible before the day of the meeting.



Citizens are advised that this meeting may be recorded, including by members of the
public. Any recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the
Council’s policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available at
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk. Individuals intending to record the meeting are asked to notify
the Governance Officer shown above in advance.



Agenda Item 5a

Wards Affected: Sherwood Item No:

Planning Committee
23'd October 2024

Report of Director of Planning and Transport

23A Private Road

1 Summary

Application Nos: 23/01000/PFUL3 for planning permission
Application by: Michael Flint-Bush

Proposal: Use of unadopted adjacent land as extension to driveway;
construction of facing brick & cast iron boundary wall (max height
2.4m) incorporating pedestrian & vehicular gate with border hedge
planting

The applications are brought to Committee as they have raised significant local interest.

To meet the Council's Performance Targets the applications should be determined by 24th
October 2024.

2 Recommendations

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to conditions substantially in the form of
those listed in the draft decision notice at the end of this report, with power to
determine the final details of the conditions to be delegated to the Director of
Planning and Transport.

3 Background

3.1 23A Private Road is a detached dwelling accessed via a long driveway that runs
alongside Yew Close. Bounding 23A Private Road to the north (rear) are Mapperley
Street and a footpath / driveway which is a historic continuation of Mapperley Street
running along the rear of houses on Private Road. It is evident that Mapperley
Street and its continuation once provided access to the rear and coach houses /
stables of the large Private Road properties. Mapperley Street is adopted highway
up to its junction with Hood Street. Land Registry records indicate that some of the
Mapperley Street continuation is owned by houses on Private Road with the two
application sites of relevance in this instance having no ownership. The Mapperley
Park and Alexandra Park Conservation Area boundary runs along Mapperley Street
and its continuation. The surrounding area largely comprises a mix of detached and
semi-detached dwellings.

3.2 Planning permission was granted in 2021 (ref. 21/00322/PFUL3) for the
construction of a new dwelling on the land which forms the continuation of
Mapperley Street to the north of 23A Private Road.

4 Details of the proposal

Page 3



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

This application relates to a triangle of land between Mapperley Street, its
continuation and 23A Private Road. The piece of land is bounded to the south by
the retaining wall of the garden of 23A Private Road and to the east by the opening
of the Mapperley Street continuation. There is no boundary between the land and
the adopted highway of Mapperley Street and the land is tarmacked, although it is
clear that this is not the same surfacing as the adopted highway.

The application seeks planning permission to use this piece of land to form part of
the driveway for the new house granted planning permission in 2021. A 2m high
wall consisting of 2.4m high brick piers, with intervening 0.9m brick walls topped
with 1.1m high railings, would be built along the boundary with Mapperley Street.
This includes a cast iron ball top access gate.

The original proposal included the rebuilding of the existing retaining wall to the rear
of 23A Private Road, but this has been omitted from the proposal.

The applicant has placed a notice in the local press under Article 13 of the Town
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015. This states that “...an applicant for planning permission must give requisite
notice of the application to any person (other than the applicant) who on the
prescribed date is an owner of the land to which the application relates, or a tenant
(a) by serving the notice on every such person whose name and address is known
to the applicant; and

(b) where the applicant has taken reasonable steps to ascertain the names and
addresses of every such person, but has been unable to do so, by publication of
the notice after the prescribed date in a newspaper circulating in the locality in
which the land to which the application relates is situated.

Consultations and observations of other officers

Adjoining occupiers consulted:

Ten neighbours were notified by letter. The application was also advertised by site
notice and press advert due to the potential impact on the conservation area.

A petition signed by 22 people has been received-

"We, the undersigned, object to the above planning application. The unadopted
land in question forms part of the highway and the residents of Mapperley Street
have been using this to allow safe turning between Hood Street and Mapperley
Street for decades. We believe that a right of way has been acquired over this
unadopted land by virtue of long use. Granting of permission for private use would
be contrary to this right of way by prescription and liable to challenge."

18 objections have been received from 9 local residents, objecting on the following

grounds:

e Land has already been grabbed and a fence put across.

e Land is part of the road and used by cars and other vehicles.

e Large refuse collection, emergency and delivery vehicles cannot navigate the
corner without swinging onto the land.

e Restricted width and lack of visibility, along with parked vehicles and increased
traffic in the area, makes corner more dangerous for drivers, pedestrians and
disabled road users.

e Increases hazards for users of nearby accesses.

Page 4



e Intense development that does not enhance the character of the conservation

area.

Retaining wall to be rebuilt does not appear unsafe.

Precedent for future encroachments.

Land is public space, needed by the public.

Adverse impact on property values.

Application not correctly advertised.

Council should adopt land as highway.

Mature landscape and wall should be retained, not replaced by conifers.

¢ Neighbours have right of access for vehicles over land owned by the applicant
and no discussions have taken place regarding compensation.

The following feedback is from a public meeting, received via a ward councillor:

e The area is part of the Mapperley Park Conservation area and a green space for
nature and wildlife and acceptance of the application will result in
overdevelopment

e Safety concerns: if the applicant takes ownership of the land and does further
extension on it, it will restrict access for emergency services and bin lorries. In
addition to this it will create a hazard to delivery drivers, car drivers, pedestrians,
wheel-chair users putting pressure on an already congested road

e The current state of land: the applicant has been using the land as a storage
area for building materials and is not clearing it up to restore to its original state
resulting in further fly-tipping (see picture attached)

e Due to the elevation of the road there is slipping and skidding during certain
times of the year as a result of foliage

Nottingham Civic Society: has reservations about the lack of detail in the proposal
to form a new street edge enclosure within the Mapperley Park Conservation Area.
No elevation of how the wall and railings will look or how it will deal with the sloping
street is provided. The plan is still difficult to interpret because it is missing the
gateway, gateposts and wall to the adjoining house at 27 Mapperley Street. The
stone wall proposed should be specified as Bulwell stone in appearance to
preserve the character of the conservation area. The screen planting hedge behind
the railings should be specified as native species in place of 'conifers' in the
interests of biodiversity.

Technical Consultees:

Highways: Do not wish to adopt the land and there is no confirmed public right of
way across it. Road Safety have confirmed a safety audit would not be required as
the new wall is set back from the natural running lane around the corner and there
is no footway link on the application side of the street. Materials must be kept off
the adopted highway and made safe during construction.

Waste and Cleansing Operations: No objections.

Environmental Health and Safer Places: potentially a contaminated land issue in
relation to the garden area from the historic road at the site. Recommend a
condition for Site Investigation and Remediation.

Relevant policies and guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (December 2023)
Page 5



The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development
and that applications for sustainable development should be approved where
possible. Paragraph 131 notes that the creation of high quality, beautiful and
sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and
development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities.

Paragraph 135 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should
ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life
or community cohesion and resilience.

Aligned Core Strategies (ACS) (2014)

Policy A: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy 10: Design and Enhancing Local Identity
Policy 11: The Historic Environment

Land and Planning Policies (LAPP) (2020)

Policy DE1: Building Design and Use
Policy DE2: Context and Place Making
Policy HE1: Proposals Affecting Designated and Non-Designated Heritage Assets

Appraisal of proposed development

Main Issues

() Principle of the development

(i) Design and impact on the streetscene and conservation area
(i) Impact on neighbours

(iv) Highway safety

Page 6



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

(i) Principle of the development

The application site is located within a predominantly residential area. The change
in use of land to allow it to be an extension of the residential use of the adjacent
property is therefore acceptable in principle. It should be noted in this regard that
the process of obtaining planning permission is separate from the question of
ownership, or any private rights that may exist over the land. A grant of planning
permission does not override any such private rights or confer any legitimacy to any
claims regarding ownership. In this case, the applicant has completed the requisite
procedures for applying for planning permission on land where the ownership is not
known, and the Council is obliged to determine the application on its planning
merits.

The application includes a wall, that is 2.4m high at its highest point, adjacent to the
highway. Given a 1m high wall could be erected in the same location without
planning permission under Permitted Development Rights, there is no objection in
principle to the installation of wall in this location, providing the proposal complies
with the other policies of the development plan.

(ii) Design and impact on the streetscene and conservation area (Policies 10
and 11 of the ACS and Policies DE1, DE2 and HEL1 of the LAPP)

The proposed wall would front the street, adjacent to the adopted highway. It is
considered this enclosure, consisting of a 0.9m brick wall topped by 1.1m railings
with 2.4m high brick piers, would not be out of keeping with the character of
Mapperley Street and the Conservation Area.

The proposed elevation states the wall is to be finished in red brick and the piers
would be topped with sandstone copings. The railings and gate would be cast iron,
ball topped and finished in black. This proposed palette of materials is considered
to be appropriate to context and further details of the precise products to be used
can be conditioned to ensure an appropriate finish. It is therefore considered the
proposal complies with Policies 10 and 11 of the ACS and Policies DE1, DE2 and
HEL.

(iii) Impact on neighbours (Policy 10 of the ACS and Policy DE1 of the LAPP)

It is considered that the use of this site as an extension to the domestic curtilage of
the adjacent property and the proposed wall and gate would have no materially
harmful impact on the amenities of its neighbours. As such, the proposed
development complies with Policy 10 of the ACS and Policy DE1 of the LAPP.

(iv) Highway safety (Policy 10 of the ACS and Policy DE2 of the LAPP)

The application land is not part of the adopted highway. Highways have confirmed
that they do not wish to adopt it for highway purposes, and that there is no
confirmed public right of way over it. The land is hard surfaced, currently has no
physical boundary with the highway and it is acknowledged that vehicles may make
use of it as an overrun in passing and turning movements on this corner. However,
this is not by right, and the facility to do this could be withdrawn at any time. The
ability to do this rests with the landowner. In addition, a 1m high boundary could be
erected on the site without needing planning permission under Permitted
Development Rights, equally preventing any overrun.

Page 7



7.7

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

The proposed gate would consist of cast iron railings and would slide sideways
rather than outward or inward. Road Safety have confirmed a safety audit would not
be required as the new wall is set back from the natural running lane around the
corner and there is no footway link on the application side of the street. It is
therefore considered the proposed development would not have a detrimental
impact on the efficient operation of the highway network or road safety in
accordance with Policy 10 of the ACS and Policy DE2 of the LAPP.
Sustainability / Biodiversity

None.

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting.

Equality and Diversity Implications
None.

Risk Management Issues

None.

Strategic Priorities

None.

Crime and Disorder Act implications
None.

Value for money

None.

List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing
confidential or exempt information

1. Application No: 23/01000/PFULS3 - link to online case file:
https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?active Tab=documents&keyVal=RVVCFPLYIU500

Published documents referred to in compiling this report

Aligned Core Strategies — Local Plan Part 1 (2014)
Land and Planning Policies — Local Plan Part 2 (2020)
NPPF (2023)

Page 8


https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=RVVCFPLYIU500
https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=RVVCFPLYIU500

Contact Officer:
Katherine Lowe, Case Officer, Development Management.
Email: katherine.lowe@nottinghamcity.gov.uk Telephone: 0115 8762435

Page 9



Site Location Plan (Not to scale)

© Crown Copyright and database right 2024 Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317

Page 10



Land at Mapperley Street

b ] M,
N 4’?8“4(
L
50 S7;
gf R 4 Factory QE&
¥/
Srab 9
7 o
4
5 64.8m A/ bog
Ly >
5l “6r o
6
9 F
I ]
~
&
3
< Ma
& g 5 80.3m
Ny
& ANK cresc
& FAIRD
Q
$
Tz
83.4m
Y
CR
fC‘H Y
Ey
25
82.5m
23
233 v
13 LEY STREET
MAPPER
14
10 A2
w
0]
o
]
Q
=
A2 w
2 e
70
24
19
15 92.7m
po
g RO
1 oRIVAT
88.0m
203 77
20 29
Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019317. Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions., Nottingham City Council Q 0.92 0.94 km 0
Printed map generated by a Nomad user on 10/06/2024. This map is not suitable for publishing, for high quality maps please contact gi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.

Key
Description

D City Boundary 23/01000/PFUL3
[7
Planning Applications - Polygons

fl Nottingham
8 City Council

Page 11




My Ref: 23/01000/PFUL3 (PP-12216293)

Your Ref:
Contact: Miss Katherine Lowe
Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Mr Harry Sculthorp

12A Hartley Business Centre
Hucknall Road

Sherwood

Nottingham

NG5 1FD

United Kingdom

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

City Council

Development Management
City Planning

Loxley House

Station Street

Nottingham

NG2 3NG

Tel: 0115 8764447
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Date of decision:

Application No:  23/01000/PFUL3 (PP-12216293)

Application by: Mr Michael Flint-Bush

Location: 23A Private Road, Nottingham, Nottingham City

Proposal: Use of unadopted adjacent land as extension to driveway; construction of facing

brick & cast iron boundary wall (max height 2.4m) incorporating pedestrian &
vehicular gate with border hedge planting

Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:-

Time limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Pre-commencement conditions
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority
for approval before starting work)

2.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, details of the proposed red
brick, sandstone coping and cast iron railings shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval. The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory in accordance with
Policies 10 and 11 of the ACS and Policies DE1 and HE1 of the LAPP

Prior to the commencement of the development, a Remediation Strategy that includes the
following components to deal with the risks associated with ground and groundwater
contamination of the site shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local

s DRAFTONLY owe

.\\ \:‘;

i Not for. issue

Nottingham

A city we’re all proud of




-

Planning Authority:

a) A Preliminary Risk Assessment which has identified:
i) all previous site uses
ii) the nature and extent of potential contaminants associated with those uses

iii) the underlying geology of the site
iv) a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors

V) potentially unacceptable risks arising from ground and groundwater contamination at
the site.
b) A Site Investigation, based on a) above, and a detailed assessment of the risk to all

receptors that may be affected, including those off site.

c) A Remediation Plan, based on a) and b) above, giving full details of the remediation
measures required and how they are to be undertaken (including a contingency plan for
dealing with any unexpected contamination not previously identified in the Site Investigation).

d) A Verification Plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in c) above are complete.

The Remediation Strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless
varied with the express written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure any potential contimation is investigated and mitigated in the interests of
future occupier amenity and to comply with Policy IN2 of the LAPP.

Pre-occupation conditions
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied)

4.

Prior to first occupation of the development, the following shall be submitted to and be
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground and groundwater
contamination of the site has been fully implemented and completed.

Reason: To ensure any potential contimation is mitigated in the interests of future occupier
amenity and to comply with Policy IN2 of the LAPP.

Regulatory/ongoing conditions
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters)

There are no conditions in this section.

Standard condition- scope of permission

S1.

Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried
out in complete accordance with the details described in the following drawings/documents:
Location Plan, received 7 June 2023

Plan reference Proposed Boundary Wall Plan revision Rev A, received 2 September 2024
Elevations reference Proposed Boundary Wall Elevation revision Rev A, received 2 September
2024

Reason: To determine the scope of this permission.

s DRAFT:ONLY  cwe

W \:‘;

i Not for issue

Nottingham

A city we’re all proud of




Informatives

1. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision.

2. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part Il of the Town & Country Planning Act
1990. It does not remove the need to obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it
imply that such other consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions
contained in the deeds to the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for example from the
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours. This permission is not an approval under the Building
Regulations.

3. Noise Control: hours of work and equipment during demolition/construction
To assist with project planning, reduce the likelihood of justified complaint and avoid costly
restriction and development delays, 'acceptable hours' are detailed below:-

Monday to Friday: 0730-1800 (noisy operations restricted to 0800-1800)

Saturday: 0830-1700 (noisy operations restricted to 0830-1300)
Sunday: at no time
Bank Holidays: at no time

Work outside these hours may be acceptable but must be agreed with Nottingham City Council's
Pollution Control Section (Tel: 0115 9152020).

Equipment
All equipment shall be properly maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with the
manufacturer's recommendations and with appropriate noise suppression/silencers.

Dust/Grit and other fugitive emissions
Construction and demolition work invariably generates grit and dust, which can be carried offsite
and cause a Statutory Nuisance, and have a detrimental effect on local air quality.

Contractors are expected to use appropriate methods to minimise fugitive emissions, reduce the
likelihood of justified complaint and avoid costly restriction and development delays. Appropriate
methods include:-

Flexible plastic sheeting

Water sprays/damping down of spoil and demolition waste
Wheel washing

Periodic road cleaning

4. The Remediation Strategy (including its component elements) must be undertaken and
implemented in accordance with the Environment Agency's Land Contamination Risk Management
guidance published at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/land-contamination-risk-
management-lcrm, CIRIA C735 Good Practice on the Testing & Verification of Protection Systems
for Buildings Against Hazardous Ground Gases (2014)' and other authoritative guidance. The
Remediation Strategy must also provide details of:

- 'Cut and fill' operations on site

- How trees retained on site will be dealt with

- How compliance with the requirements of the Nottingham City Council - Guidance on Cover
Layers & Verification Testing 2019 will be achieved

- Any asbestos surveys carried out, the method statement for removal of asbestos and subsequent
validation of air and soil following asbestos removal and demolition.

& DRAFT-ONLY o

Y ‘\-_'4‘
—

oy Not for. issue

Nottingham

A city we’re all proud of



-

i Not for issue

Following completion of the development, no construction work, landscaping or other activity must
be undertaken which may compromise the remediation measures implemented to deal with ground
and groundwater contamination of the site.

It is a requirement of current Building Regulations that basic radon protection measures are
installed in all new constructions, extensions conversions & refurbishments on sites which are
Radon Class 3 or 4 and full radon protection measure are installed on site which are Radon Class 5
or higher. Advice from the Council's Environmental Health Team regarding appropriate gas
protection measures must be sought where there are both radon issues and ground gas issues
present.

The responsibility and subsequent liability for safe development and secure occupancy of the site
rests with the developer and/or the landowner. The developer is required to institute a thorough
investigation and assessment of the ground conditions, nature and degree of contamination on the
site to ensure that actual or potential risks to public health and safety can be overcome by
appropriate remedial, preventive or precautionary measures. The developer shall provide at his
own expense such evidence as is required to indicate clearly that the risks associated with ground,
groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site has been addressed satisfactorily.

Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose.

Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet.

& DRAFT-ONLY o

Y ‘\L‘

Nottingham

A city we’re all proud of



RIGHTS OF APPEAL
Application No: 23/01000/PFUL3 (PP-12216293)

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice. You can obtain an appeal
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN. Phone: 0117 372 6372. Appeal forms
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm. Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs.

The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the
Planning Portal). This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate. Please ensure that
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will
be made available to others in this way. If you supply personal information belonging to a third party
please ensure you have their permission to do so. More detailed information about data protection
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City
Council based its decision on a direction given by him.

PURCHASE NOTICES

If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

COMPENSATION

In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country
Planning Act 1990.

STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING

Nottingham City Council has a statutory responsibility for agreeing and registering addresses. If the
development will create one or more new addresses or streets (for example a new build or
conversion) please contact address.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk as soon as possible,

% DRAFT ONLY

AN ‘-\L
"y <

o Not for issue

A city we're all proud of -5-



quoting your planning application reference. Any addresses assigned outside of this process will
not be officially recognised and may result in difficulties with service delivery.

% DRAFT ONLY

ey Not for.issue

Nottingham

A city we're all proud of -0 -



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5b

Wards Affected: Sherwood Item No:

Planning Committee
23'd October 2024

Report of Director of Planning and Transport

23A Private Road

1 Summary

Application No: 23/01001/PFUL3 for planning permission

Application by: Michael Flint-Bush

Proposal: Use of unadopted adjacent land to be maintained as an extension

to outdoor amenity space and construction of close boarded timber
fencing to existing shared boundaries where required.

The applications are brought to Committee as they have raised significant local interest.

To meet the Council's Performance Targets the applications should be determined by 24th
October 2024.

2 Recommendations

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to conditions substantially in the form
listed in the draft decision notice at the end of this report, with power to determine
the final details of the conditions to be delegated to the Director of Planning and
Transport.

3 Background

3.1 23A Private Road is a detached dwelling accessed via a long driveway that runs
alongside Yew Close. Bounding 23A Private Road to the north (rear) are Mapperley
Street and a footpath / driveway which is a historic continuation of Mapperley Street
running along the rear of houses on Private Road. It is evident that Mapperley
Street and its continuation once provided access to the rear and coach houses /
stables of the large Private Road properties. Mapperley Street is adopted highway
up to its junction with Hood Street. Land Registry records indicate that some of the
Mapperley Street continuation is owned by houses on Private Road with the two
application sites of relevance in this instance having no ownership. The Mapperley
Park and Alexandra Park Conservation Area boundary runs along Mapperley Street
and its continuation. The surrounding area largely comprises a mix of detached and
semi-detached dwellings.

3.2 Planning permission was granted in 2021 (ref. 21/00322/PFUL3) for the
construction of new dwelling on the land which forms the continuation of Mapperley
Street to the north of 23A Private Road.

3.3 In 2021, 27 Mapperley Street received planning permission for ‘Use of unadopted
adjacent land as extensions to driveway and garden; associated earthworks,
removal of section of brick boundary wall and erection of 2m high timber fencing.’
(21/01414/PFUL3). This permisaigélehfé been implemented.



4.1

4.2

4.3

Details of the proposal

This application relates to a piece of land further along the Mapperley Street
continuation, to the east (rear) of the new house and to the north of 3 Yew Close.

The application seeks planning permission to use this piece of land as garden
space for the new dwelling with a close boarded timber fence constructed along the
boundary with 27 Mapperley Street, the house to the north. A footpath would be
retained through this land, as is the case with the new house being built. There is
no known public right of way over this land.

The applicant has placed a notice in the local press under Article 13 of the Town
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015. This states that “...an applicant for planning permission must give requisite
notice of the application to any person (other than the applicant) who on the
prescribed date is an owner of the land to which the application relates, or a tenant
(a) by serving the notice on every such person whose name and address is known
to the applicant; and

(b) where the applicant has taken reasonable steps to ascertain the names and
addresses of every such person, but has been unable to do so, by publication of
the notice after the prescribed date in a newspaper circulating in the locality in
which the land to which the application relates is situated.

Page 20



Consultations and observations of other officers

Adjoining occupiers consulted:

Thirteen neighbours notified. The application was also advertised by site notice and
press advert due to the potential impact on the conservation area.

6 objections have been received from 4 local residents, objecting on the following
grounds:

e Loss of biodiversity

e Any development on the land (being higher than the adjacent land to the north)
would overlook neighbour and result in loss of privacy

No Tree Survey has been carried out

No detail of how the land will be maintained is included in application

Land in question has been maintained by a neighbour since September 2022
Neighbours have a right of way over the land

A number of objections also contained objections to 23/01000/PFUL3 which are not
relevant to this application (highway safety, parking issues, damage to adopted
highway, disruption to bin collections, loss of vehicle access rights)

Additional consultation letters sent to:

Highways: The proposal for the area of unadopted land is unlikely to be
detrimental to the public highway. The area of land is set back a considerable
distance from the nearest public highway (junction of Mapperley Street and Hood
Street), and this area of land is not adopted public highway. There is no known
public right of way.

Environmental Health and Safer Places: potentially a contaminated land issue in
relation to the garden area from the historic road at the site. Recommend a
condition for Site Investigation and Remediation.

Relevant policies and guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (December 2023)

The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development
and that applications for sustainable development should be approved where
possible. Paragraph 131 notes that the creation of high quality, beautiful and
sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and
development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities.

Paragraph 135 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should
ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;
Page 21



7.1

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life
or community cohesion and resilience.

Aligned Core Strategies (ACS) (2014)

Policy A: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy 10: Design and Enhancing Local Identity
Policy 11: The Historic Environment

Land and Planning Policies (LAPP) (2020)

Policy DE1: Building Design and Use
Policy DE2: Context and Place Making
Policy HE1: Proposals Affecting Designated and Non-Designated Heritage Assets

Policy IN2: Land Contamination, Instability and Pollution
Appraisal of proposed development

Main Issues

() Principle of the development

(i) Design and impact on the street scene and conservation area
(iii) Impact on neighbours

(iv) Other matters

(i) Principle of the development

The application site is located within a predominantly residential area. The change
in use of land to allow it to be used as part of the residential curtilage of the new
dwelling is therefore acceptable in principle. It should be noted in this regard that
the process of obtaining planning permission is separate from the question of
ownership, or any private rights that may exist over the land. A grant of planning
permission does not override any such private rights or confer any legitimacy to any
claims regarding ownership. In this case, the applicant has completed the requisite
procedures for applying for planning permission on land where the ownership is not
known, and the council is obliged to determine the application on its planning
merits.

(if) Design and Impact on the streetscene and conservation area (Policies 10
Page 22



7.2

7.3

7.4

10.

11.

12.

13.

and 11 of the ACS and Policies DE1, DE2 and HE1 of the LAPP)

The application site would not be visible from the street scene and it is not
considered that the proposed change in use would have any adverse impact upon
the character or appearance of the Conservation Area. It is therefore considered
the proposal complies with Policies 10 and 11 of the ACS and Policies DE1, DE2
and HE1 of the LAPP.

(iii) Impact on neighbours (Policy 10 of the ACS and Policy DE1 of the LAPP)
The application site is at a higher ground level than the rear gardens of 6 Hood
Street and 2-8 Fairbank Crescent to the north. Due to the overgrown nature of the
site, the exact change in ground level is not currently known. The agent has agreed
to a condition that prior to the first use of the land as residential curtilage, plans
showing the change in ground level, along with fence details, shall be submitted for
approval. This will ensure that a fence of a suitable height to prevent overlooking
can be installed at the site. It is therefore considered the proposal will not have a
significant negative impact on neighbour amenity and complies with Policy 10 of the
ACS and Policy DE1 of the LAPP.

(iv) Other matters

Environmental Health have stated that due to the historic use of the site as a road,
there may be contamination. As the proposed development involves changing the
use of the land to residential curtilage, a site investigation should be undertaken
with a Remediation Strategy proposed, if necessary. These can be conditioned and
it is considered this is sufficient to satisfy Policy 10 of the ACS and Policy IN2 of the
LAPP.

Sustainability / Biodiversity

None.

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting.

Equality and Diversity Implications
None.

Risk Management Issues

None.

Strategic Priorities

None.

Page 23



14.

15.

16.

17.

Crime and Disorder Act implications
None.

Value for money

None.

List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing
confidential or exempt information

1. Application No: 23/01001/PFULS - link to online case file:
https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?active Tab=documents&keyVal=RVVCG4LYIU800

Published documents referred to in compiling this report

Aligned Core Strategies — Local Plan Part 1 (2014)
Land and Planning Policies — Local Plan Part 2 (2020)
NPPF (2021)

Strategic Council Plan 2024-27 refresh

Contact Officer:
Katherine Lowe, Case Officer, Development Management.
Email: katherine.lowe@nottinghamcity.gov.uk Telephone: 0115 8762435

Page 24


https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=RVVCG4LYIU800
https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=RVVCG4LYIU800

Site Location Plan (Not to scale)

© Crown Copyright and database right 2024 Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317

Page 25



Land at Mapperley Street
o & & Y,
2 & ™ c%/
N S X 9 O
) ® 65.2m 7 93 ol
Q
< ~ AR =
& i SHAIQ S: §
eco _,Q.r % y QE Q<§J k43
gf SR % Factory s
Sggb 9
Ttn
64.6m 273,
L Qg
Oyp &
STRe, ) & a1
o S & %
78 Q
S
z
1a
K CRESC'ENT
& 80.3m FPARBP‘N =
=) ay
g
AN
o) 83.4m
§
= 2
-
E
25 %
82.5m =
28 M -
EET 2% - 5
MAPPERY 2
w
w
g 96.2m
g
> P\D LB
o
a e®
2 o W py
710
9
15 1 92.7m
88.0m
203 2
20 B
182
A
A2
Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019317. Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions., Nottingham City Council 0 0.03 0.05 km 0
Key Printed map generated by a Nomad user on 10/06/2024. This map is not suitable for publishing, for high quality maps please contact gi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
Description
23/01001/PFUL3

D City Boundary

[7

Planning Applications - Polygons

fl Nottingham
8 City Council

Page 26




My Ref: 23/01001/PFUL3 (PP-12216817)

Your Ref: = =
City Council
Contact: Miss Katherine Lowe
Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk gﬁ;//eFl’?;n??nng; Management
Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham
Mr Harry Sculthorp NG2 3NG
12A Hartley Business Centre
Hucknall Road Tel: 0115 8764447
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk
Sherwood
Nottingham
NG5 1FD

United Kingdom

Date of decision:
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

Application No:  23/01001/PFUL3 (PP-12216817)

Application by: Mr Michael Flint-Bush

Location: 23A Private Road, Nottingham, Nottingham City

Proposal: Use of unadopted adjacent land to be maintained as an extension to outdoor
amenity space and construction of 1.8m high close boarded timber fencing to
existing shared boundaries where required.

Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:-

Time limit

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Pre-commencement conditions
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority
for approval before starting work)

2. Prior to the commencement of the development, a Remediation Strategy that includes the
following components to deal with the risks associated with ground and groundwater
contamination of the site shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority:

a) A Preliminary Risk Assessment which has identified:
i) all previous site uses
i) the nature and extent of potential contaminants associated with those uses

iii) the underlying geology of the site
iv) a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors

V) potentially unacceptable risks arising from ground and groundwater contamination at
/ [“E:';v D RAF I 1 O N L I Continued...
oy
W\ \:‘;
— <b L]
Safer, clefmer. ambitious N ot t%g 2';SS u e
Nottingham

A city we’re all proud of



the site.

b) A Site Investigation, based on a) above, and a detailed assessment of the risk to all
receptors that may be affected, including those off site.

c) A Remediation Plan, based on a) and b) above, giving full details of the remediation
measures required and how they are to be undertaken (including a contingency plan for
dealing with any unexpected contamination not previously identified in the Site Investigation).

d) A Verification Plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in ¢) above are complete.

The Remediation Strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless
varied with the express written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure any potential contimation is investigated and mitigated in the interests of
future occupier amenity and to comply with Policy IN2 of the LAPP.

Pre-occupation conditions
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied)

3.  Prior to first occupation of the development, the following shall be submitted to and be
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground and groundwater
contamination of the site has been fully implemented and completed.

Reason: To ensure any potential contimation is mitigated in the interests of future occupier
amenity and to comply with Policy IN2 of the LAPP.

4. Prior to the first use of the land as residential curtilage, a plan showing the existing ground
levels in relation to the properties and gardens to the north of the site and proposed fence
details shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The fence shall then be
installed in accordance with the approved plans, prior to the first use of the land as residential
curtilage.

Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby property to comply with Policy 10
of the ACS and Policy DE1 of the LAPP

Regulatory/ongoing conditions
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters)

There are no conditions in this section.

Standard condition- scope of permission

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried
out in complete accordance with the details described in the forms, drawings and other
documents comprising the application as validated by the council on 13 September 2023.

Reason: To determine the scope of this permission.

Informatives

s DRAFT:ONLY  cwe

W \:‘;

i Not for issue

Nottingham

A city we’re all proud of




1. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision.

2. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part 1l of the Town & Country Planning Act
1990. It does not remove the need to obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it
imply that such other consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions
contained in the deeds to the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for example from the
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours. This permission is not an approval under the Building
Regulations.

3. The Remediation Strategy (including its component elements) must be undertaken and
implemented in accordance with the Environment Agency's Land Contamination Risk Management
guidance published at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/land-contamination-risk-
management-lcrm, CIRIA C735 Good Practice on the Testing & Verification of Protection Systems
for Buildings Against Hazardous Ground Gases (2014)' and other authoritative guidance. The
Remediation Strategy must also provide details of:

- 'Cut and fill' operations on site

- How trees retained on site will be dealt with

- How compliance with the requirements of the Nottingham City Council - Guidance on Cover
Layers & Verification Testing 2019 will be achieved

- Any asbestos surveys carried out, the method statement for removal of asbestos and subsequent
validation of air and soil following asbestos removal and demolition.

Following completion of the development, no construction work, landscaping or other activity must
be undertaken which may compromise the remediation measures implemented to deal with ground
and groundwater contamination of the site.

It is a requirement of current Building Regulations that basic radon protection measures are
installed in all new constructions, extensions conversions & refurbishments on sites which are
Radon Class 3 or 4 and full radon protection measure are installed on site which are Radon Class 5
or higher. Advice from the Council's Environmental Health Team regarding appropriate gas
protection measures must be sought where there are both radon issues and ground gas issues
present.

The responsibility and subsequent liability for safe development and secure occupancy of the site
rests with the developer and/or the landowner. The developer is required to institute a thorough
investigation and assessment of the ground conditions, nature and degree of contamination on the
site to ensure that actual or potential risks to public health and safety can be overcome by
appropriate remedial, preventive or precautionary measures. The developer shall provide at his
own expense such evidence as is required to indicate clearly that the risks associated with ground,
groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site has been addressed satisfactorily.

Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose.

Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet.

& DRAFT-ONLY o

Y ‘\-_'4‘
—

oy Not for issue

Nottingham

A city we’re all proud of



RIGHTS OF APPEAL
Application No: 23/01001/PFUL3 (PP-12216817)

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice. You can obtain an appeal
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN. Phone: 0117 372 6372. Appeal forms
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm. Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs.

The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the
Planning Portal). This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate. Please ensure that
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will
be made available to others in this way. If you supply personal information belonging to a third party
please ensure you have their permission to do so. More detailed information about data protection
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City
Council based its decision on a direction given by him.

PURCHASE NOTICES

If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

COMPENSATION

In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country
Planning Act 1990.

STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING

Nottingham City Council has a statutory responsibility for agreeing and registering addresses. If the
development will create one or more new addresses or streets (for example a new build or
conversion) please contact address.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk as soon as possible,

% DRAFT ONLY

o Not for issue

A city we’re all proud of - 4 -



quoting your planning application reference. Any addresses assigned outside of this process will
not be officially recognised and may result in difficulties with service delivery.

% DRAFT ONLY

e g Not for.issue

Nottingham

A city we're all proud of -5-



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5a 23A Private Road Nottingham City NG5 4DD
	5b 23A Private Road Nottingham City NG5 4DD



